
UNITED NATIONS

General_Assembly
FORTY-FOURTH SESSION

Official Records

SUMMARY ~3CORD OF THE 23rd MEETING

Chairman: Mr. PAYTON (New Zealand)

later: Mr. GHEZAL (Tunisia)

CONTENTS

SECOND COMMITTEE
23rd meeting

held on
Friday, 27 October 1989

at 3 p.m.
New York

AGENDA ITEM 82: DEVELG'!!MENT AND INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC CO-OPERATION

(f) ENVIRONMENT (continued)

~g) DESERTIFICATION AND DROUGHT (continued)

(j) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OF EXTRATERRITORIAL SPACES FOR PRESENT AND
FUTURE GENERATIONS (continued)

AGENDA ITEM 85: PROTECTION OF GLOBAL CLIMATE FOR PRESENT AND FUTURE GENERATIONS OF
MANKIND (continued)

This record is subject to correclion.
Com:elions should be :;Cn! under the si~nal"rc .,ra memher of lhe dele~alion concerned

within on, wt''* ofth,. dt1l,. ofpuhli",uion to the Chiefof lhe OHk,al Records Editing Section. Room DC2·750.
2 United Nations PIal.., and incorporated on a copy of the recnrd.

Correctinns will be issued after the- cnd of Chc !'icssum. in il separate currigcndum for each Committee.

89-56666 19108 (E)

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.2/44/SR.23
15 November 1989
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: SPANISH

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC. 2144/SR. 23
English
Page 2

The meeting was called yo.order at 3.20 p.m.

AGENDA ITEM 82: DEVELOPMENT AND INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC CO-OPERATION (A/44/3, 84,
139, 187, 188, 235, 254, 260, 355, 409 and Corr.1, 467, 499, 598, 617)

(f) ENVIRONMENT (continued) (A/44/25, 256 and Corr.l, 264, 278, 295, 332, 339 and
Add.l to 11, 340, 349, 350, 362 and Corr.l, 386, 479, 480, 578, 632, 659;
A/C.2/44/L.2, L.6, and L.7)

(g) DESERTIFICATION AND DROUGHT (continued) (A/44/25, 296, 351; DP/1989/50)

(j) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OF EXTRATERRITORIAL SPACES FOR PRESENT AND FUTURE
GENERATIONS (continued) (A/44/l93)

AGENDA ITEM 85: PROTECTION OF GLOBAL CLIMATE FOR PRESENT AND FUTURE GENERATIONS OF
MANKIND (continued) (A/44/260, 264, 340, 394, 409 and Corr.l, 463, 477, 484;
AlC. 2144/2)

1. Mr. ROKOTUlVUNA (Fiji) said that the 1992 conference on environment and
development would be most timely, but the many legigl~tive, scientific and
practical initiatives and measures currently under consideration should not be l~ft

pending during the preparations. Work must continue on protocols relating to
"greenhouse" gases, strengthening tl,e Hontr.eal Protocol, outlawing of drift-net
fishing and other urgent measures.

2. Poor States unquestionably bore only limited responsibility for the
environment; environmental damage caused by industrialized countries outweighed
that produced by all the others by a factor of over 10 to 1. Given the seriousness
of the problem, however, the only possible solution was world-wide action to
address all causal factors simultaneously. Putting pressure on developing
countries in environmental matters as a further condition for granting development
relief would do a serious disservice to the joint efforts which lay ahead.

3. Development depended not only on favourable circumstances but on the
elimination of factors which hindered its progress, such as poverty and hunger,
His delegation agreed without reservation that the environment was a just and noble
cause, but it was one which required solutions to be found to social problems and
encouragement to be given to development.

4. A wide variety of factors hindered sustainable development in the southern
Pacific region. One was the habit adopted by certain industrialized countries in
recent years of treating small island States as private dumping g~ounds. Small
island countries did not have the technical facilities or manpower to enforce
regulations on the dumping of Wfi>:te. His delegation proposed that the United
Nations Environment Programme should assist small developing countries in dealing
with the problem.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.2144/SR.23
English
Page 3

5. F~shing was an activity of great importance to many Pacific countries. The
rp.r.ent spread oC drift-net fishing imperilled the future of fishing industries and
the livelihood of many inhabi.tants of the r~gion. His delegation condemned
drift-net fishing, not only because it cr~ated an imbalance in the aquatic
envirorunent but also because it was not conducive to the sustainable eX~loitation

o( marine resources. The Tarawa Dec13ration issued by the South Pacific Forum in
JUly 1989 expressed the united opposition of the Pacific island States to drift-net
fishing. He welcomed the fact that some distunt-water-fishing nations had decided
to reduce and curtail the practice.

6. His delegation considered it @.ssential to discuss the relationship between
nuclear tests and the environment under item 82 (f). The eHects of tests
conducted more than 30 years previously could still be seen: some islands remained
uninhabitable because radiation had rendered them sterile. Tests were now
~onrlucted underground; although the effects were not known, action should not be
delayed until they manifested themselves but taken immediately, calling for an end
to nuclear tests for the sake of the future enviroI~ent.

7. His delegation endorsed the statement by the representative of Samoa on the
protection of the global climate for present and Cuture generations. Unless an
effective way of dealing with climatic change in the Pacific region was found, some
parts of the States in the region would Ultimately disappear. The nations of the
Pncific region were already taking action to cope with the problem, and called on
other groups of States to collaborate in that important endeavour.

8. ML._._._f.lS.H~.R (Australia) said that scientific field research was needed to
respond effectively to climatic Change. When strategies on the SUbject were
adopted, the views of all countries would have to be taken into account, resisting
the tendency to allow the most politically and economically powerful countries
predominant influence.

9. His Go~:errunent was concerned not only at the potentially catastrophic effects
of rising sea level on low-lying island countries, but at other regional and world
problems. The Prime Minister had said that international action on the environment
should concentrate on four elements, namely, the early development of an
international convention on climatic change, the development and acceptance of an
internat.ionel convention for the protection of biological diversity, the promotion
or hntter forestry management practices, and a ban on drift-net fishing.

10. Land degradation affected more than two thirds of the cultivable area of the
cOlltinent of Australia, where 50 per cent of the tree cover had been destroyed in
200 years of European settlement. His Government had proclaimed the 199Gs as the
decade '.J( land care. There were plans to plant 1,000 million trees and set minimwn
environmental standards. The country was developing forestry management measures
whic}l :t intended to pursue through the l~ternational Tropical Timber Olganization
and other int.::rnational bodies.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2/44/SR.23
English
Page 4

11. His country shared the concern at the spread of pelagic drift-net fishing,
particularly on the high seas in the south~rn and western Pacific. The economic
future of many r.ountries in the region depended largely, if not totally, on the
effe~tive management of the fish resources within their exclusive economic zones.
In that connection he drew attention to the most recent report of the South Pacific
Albacore Research Group, sponsored by the South Pacific Commission and comprising
scientists from Australia, New Zealand, the United States of America, Canada,
France, Japan and Taiwan. The Group had concluded that the albacore catch was
increasing at an alarming rate because of a widespre~d increase in the use of drift
nets over the past two years.

12. In July, Australia and other members oC the South Pacific Forum had signed the
Tarawa Declaration calling for a ban on drift-net fishing in the region. In
October, the South Pacific Conference had expressed concern at the deleterious
effectR of drift-net fishing and had called for an immediate ban. Australia had
also subscribed to the Langkawi Declaration on Environment rocently issued by the
Commonwealth Heads of Government in Malaysia. The Declaration called, .in.t..e.L.a.l..ia,
for immediate action to discourage and restrict non-sustainable fishing practices
and to ban tangle nets and pelagic drift-net fishing.

13. ~f,_~THQH (Hungary) rJcalled that 20 years earlier the United Nations had
taken the first global measures to save the earth Crom destruction. There was no
doubt that all countries must be concerned with conservation and the protection of
ecosystems. Problems relating to the destruction of the ozone layer or global
warming, the maintenance of biological diversity, the protection of soils, flora
and fauna, and environmentally sound management of hazardous wastes and toxic
chemicals must be tackled without delay.

14. If countries were to achieve sustainable and environmentally sound
development, a spirit of international co-operation must prevail in the economic
sphere. His Government realized that much higher priority should be given to
environmental considerations in 3conomic and social plann,ng, in various sectors of
the economy and in education. Hungary's intorest in the environment had led it to
eKwnine earlier agreements and to take new initiatives, such as the establishment,
in co-operation with the United States of America, oC the Environmental Protection
C~rltre for Central and Eastern Europe. Hungary had also participated actively in
t.hp. preparation of the Basel Conference and in the work of the Brundtland
Commission. The Hungarian Government supported the establishment of a preparatory
committee for the conference on environment and development. It ~lso believed
that, in order to give fyrther impetus to the preparatory process, a conference
secretariat should be set up at Geneva in the near future. His delegation wished
to expreRs its appreciation to the Government of Brazil for its generous offer to
host the conference.

15. MJJ.-KR£J~~ (World Health Organization) said that the WHO environmental health
programme in developing countries had consistently focused on improving water
~upply and yanitation facilities through human resource and institutional
oevelopment, community participation, appropriate technology and better use of

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.U44/SR.23
English
Page 5

available resources. The reason for that was evident: in most developing
countries, disease was largely ass'-lciated with contaminated water and unsanitary
disposal of human waste. Consequently, eVp.Jl though the International Drinking
Watel' Supply alld Sanitation Decade was drawing to a close, sHorts to improve those
aspects of sanitation by c~-ordinating the inputs of other support agencies would
not. CflnSA.

16. The threats highlighted in the report of the World Commission on Envirorunent
and Development reflActed an acceleration of environmental changes which called for
strong corrective action. WHO could play a major role in dealing with the
following problems: urbanization and the population explosion in the peripheral
areus of major cities; toxic substances which entered the food chain and polluted
water sources; ozone depletion, which increased the incidence of skin cancer ard
eye cataracts; tIle greenhouse effect; marine and coastal pollution, which posed
dangers for bathers and health threats all a10119 the food chal.n; and natural
di~nsters, such as those which had 0ccurred at Seveso, Bhrypal and Chernobyl.

17. WHO had convened a working meeting of world-renowned experts to assess the
impact on health of climate change, including depletion of the ozone layer. The
findings would be pUblishFd and made availabl& to the Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change and to the Second World Climate Conference, to be held at Geneva in
1990. Primary health care and sustainable development were concepts that
expl id tly acknOWledged the signif icance of impi'ov ing heal th and the importance of
a healthy environment for the current and future generations.

18. The Director-General of WHO had announced the convening of a technical
commission of 8Xpp.rts on health and the enviromnent. On the basis of the
commission's findings, WHO would develop resvonsive programme strategies and
initiate the necessary research activities, financing them with extrabudgetary
reRO\lrces. WHO was prepared to provide the permanent secretariat, and it was to be
hoped that the ~ppointment of the Commission Chairman would be announced early in
1990. One outcome of the Commission's work would be a report that would be
5ubmi tted as i:\ WHO contribution t.O the Uni ted Nations conference on envi ronment and
development schedu1pd for 1992; the report would emphasize the health 'lmension of
the environment.al crisis. It was in that spirit. that WHO had chosen the theme of
envllUlunellt and health for Worlc1 Health Day, traditionally celebrated on 7 April
';'n lq90.

lq. Mr.. ~JNJ:;! t TntprnRtional Li'lbour Organisation) said that t.he Int.ernational
Labour Conrere~cd meeting in June 1990 would have as the main item on its agenda
Lhe subject o( environment. ::wd the wOl'ld of labour. The report of the
Dlrectol'-Gsller:l1 of ILO would contain an overview of issues related to the
environment and development in the activities of the United Nations system and
would consider the pot Intial impact of environmental problems and policies on the
world of labour. The aim of the report was to encourage ILO to play a more active
role in order to ensure that future environmental policies effectively and
equitably took into account their potential impact on the tripartite world of
work. An example of the interest ILO took in those subjects was to be found in a

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



hlC. 2144/SR. 23
Engl.itlh
Pagp. ()

recent report on the effect of environmental policies on employment in certain
Western countries. While the data suggested that employment cut-backs attributable
t.o environmental causes had been rather limited, envi ronmental policies had not yet
begun to generate employment. Political statements had not been translated into
Action and, according to the data available, public funds for the environment in
mf:\tly countries stood at the le-'el they had been at a decade earlier.

lOo Currently, it was impossible to distinguish completely between environment in
t.hfJ work-pl<'\ce and the environment in general. ILO would give increasing priority
t.o protecting the environment of workers employed outside the industrial sector and
in other organized sectors of the economy, particularly in rural areas, as well as
in the informal sector, especially in developing countries. Rapid population
growth was making the creation of millions of new jobs imperative, and those jobs
mu~t be healthy, safe and compdtible with sustainable ard environmentally sound
development. ILO was closely following the preparations for the United Nations
conference on environment and development scheduled for 1992 and would make an
appropriate contribution.

21. Mr!. __~.lAlLAN.. (IRlamic Repub1J.c of Iran) said that serious threats menaced the
global environment without regard to frontiers; environmental protection was thus
the responsibility of the international community. The inclusion of the
flnvi [·onment. in the internRtional development strategy and the adoption of Gellerrll
Assembly resolution 43/196, on the United Nations conference on environment and
development to be held in 1992, demonstrated that the international community was
ready to take collective action in that regard.

22. His delegation welcomed the request by UNEP's Governing Council for
lwqutiations to establish a convention on climate change. That process must
commp.nce at the earliest possible datA in order to avoid climate changes which
could not be controlled.

;n. In view of the marine environment t s role as a source of human nutrition,
mnrine pOllution gave cause for concern. The Islamic Republic of Iran was
attempting to ~rotect the Persian Gulf against pOllution and, to that end, was
Cl)l laborating with other countries in the region through the Regional Organizati.on
[CH tho Protection of the Marine Environment. Despite the measures and devices
f\xi~t.ing to control transboundary movements of hazardous wastes, including the
Bilgel Convention on the Control of Transb0undary Movements of Hazardous Wastes and
till! i L Di SpOf,nl, the situation remained cri tical. His delegation wished to draw the
ClJmtnit:tE'~'R attention to the fact that barrels containing hazardous waste hrtd
[p.c~!HI.ly been dumped in the Persian Gulf by unknown ships. It should be reiterated
thnt: thA countries which generated such w~ste were solely responsible for the
po 11 ution caused. The 1992 United Nations conference on environment and
rlRvelopment mURt Rc1dress those problems. The developing countrieq must be provided
wi.th technology and financial resources to cope with marine pollution.

24. His delegation welcomed the UNEP Governing Council decision to continue
Rccording priority to the question of desertification within the field of
environmental management. Financial resources must be provided urgently to

I • ••
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2/44/SR.23
English
Page 7

Cllll.i-desertification programmes at the local, national and regional levels. His
de.legntion had expressed its willingness to co-operate with UNEP and the regional
commissions for the exchange of experience and information in the field. The
Goverl~ent Qf Iran would establish a centre to combat desertlfication in Tehran,
whi~h would be responsible for providing information to affected countries in the
regioll. Iran hoped to benefit from the co-operation of FAO, the International Fund
[or Agricultural Development (IFAD) and UNEP, whi~h would greatly facilitate the
wor~ of the centre.

25. The responsibility for degradation of the environment did not rest equally
with developed and developing countries. Industrial and agricultural activities in
developed countries had endangered the environment. Developing countries, for
their pal't, which lacked resources, were exposed to t.remendous environmental
problems created by the industrialized countries.

Gli. Lastly, in view of the growing importance of the question of the environment,
it. would be necessary to strengthen UNEP, which would mean allocating greater
financial resources to the Programme. Therefore, his delegation welcomed the
budqel:. proposed for UNEP at the fifteenth session of its Governing Council.

28. M.I:_._._,ALMAB~Q!.LlS. (Libyan Arab Jamahiriya) said that no country or group of
countries could cope single-handedly with the problems of environmental
deterioration. International co-operation within the United Nations system must
therefore be stepped up in order to find a global solution to the question.

2Q. The discussion on environmental protection should be placed in the context of.
tIle development process. The international community must allocate more resources
t.o thf' initiatives taken by countries to preserve the environment. The
industrialized countries, which had contributed the most to the deterioration of
the environment by producing and conswning harmful substances, had a greater
obligntion than the rest to seek ways of coping with such deterioration and to
[aci 1itate t.he transfer of less envirol:mentally damaging technology to the
developing countries.

30. His delegation was very concerned thAt exports of toxic and dangerous wastes
Lu developing countries by certain developed countries and transnational
(:ol'rol'atio~s were becoming an increasingly frequent occurrence. Such practices
wele tu be categorically condemned, and measures to ban them must be adopted at the
international level.

11. His delegation was concerned about the environmenta~ threats posed to the
Mediterranean basin as a result of the concentration of foreign fishing fJeets in
the region. Certain countries outside the region were indiscriminately exploiting
a nwnber of species, such as tuna, which were already on the way to extinction.
The countries of the Mediterranean and the Movement of Non-Aligned Countries
demanded an end to such overfishing.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC. 2144/SR. 23
English
Page 8

(Mr. Almabrouk. Libyan Arab Jamahiriya)

32. His delegation was particularly concerned over the increasing desertificationof Africa. Drought had already caused a drastic decline in agricultural productionon the continent, further impairinq its economic and social situation. Hisdelegation urged the internationa t ':ommuni ty, the organi zations of the UnitedNations system and non-governmental organizations to continue lending support andfinancial assistance and technology to the African countries' efforts to combatdesertification and drought.

33. ~r. PAOLILLO (Uruguay) said that his country, located in the temperate zone ofthe southern hemisphere with sea coasts facing the southern regions of the AtlanticOcean, had an economy based on livestock breeding and lacked mineral resources.The effects of phenomena such as depletion of the ozone layer, climate change andglobal warming would be disastrous for its inhabitants and its economy. A rise inse:, level, for example, would affect most of the population, which lived along ornear the coast, and would put an end to tourism, which was one of Uruguay'sprincipal industries and depended on the natural beauty of the coastline.

34. In addition, overfishing in the south Atlantic by fishing flee~s from outsidethe region had already hac adverse effects on fish stocks in the zone underUruguay's maritime jurisdiction.

35. However, the international community had demonstrated its capacity to reacteffectively against the dangers caused by environmental degradation. That wasborne out by the Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary Movements ofHazardous Wastes and their Disposal, the Vienna Convention for the Protection ofthe Ozone Layer and the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the OzoneLayer, together with the proposal to convene a United Nations conference onenvironment and development in 1992.

36. Climate protection was another area of vital importance. His delegationsupported resolution 43/53 on protection of global climate for present and futuregenerations of mankind, and would support any other initiative aimed at promotinginternational co-operation to prevent, limit and reduce harmful climatt changes.

37. As stated at the Sixth Ministerial Meeting on the Environment in Latin Americaand the Caribbean, held at Brasilia in March 1989, the solution to theenvironmental problem required unprecedented co-operation between developed anddeveloping countries. The origins of ecological imbalances and the social andeconomic factors underlying them must be considered. There were two types ofenvironmental degradation: that which originated with production and the enjoymentof wealth, and that which could be traced to the hardships of poverty. Hence, theecological issue might well be approached differently by industrialized anddeveloping countries. During the preparations for the 1992 conference, therefore,certain agreements must be reached on establishing the conceptual basis for legalinstruments aimed at preserving the environment. The Brundtland Report, theCaracas Declaration of the Ministers of Foreign Affairs of the Group of 77 and UNEPGoverning Council decision 15/2 could be useful in that connection.

I . ..

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2144/SR.23
English
Page 9

(Mr. PaQlillQ, Uruguay)

38. Genuine prQgress i. envirQnmental protection could only be achieved in tt 1

light of the envirQnment-develQPment relationship. On the one hand, the aim was to
introduce the environmental dim€~siQn in dev~lopment policies and strategies,
nQtwithstanding the sovereign ri~ht Qf States to exploit their natural resources.
On the other hand, the objective was to let the eCQnQmic development factor play
its rightful part in environmental protection strategies and pQlicies. His
delegation was cQnvinced that eCQnQmic d~velopment and envirQnmental protection
must be viewed not as incompatible, but as complementary. Sustainable development
should include the elimination of poverty, the meeting of basic needs and the
maintenance of an adequate lev~l of growth in order for the developing cQuntries to
be able to achieve their econOldc and social objectives and improve t'le quality of
life.

39. Mr. PAYTON (New Zealand) resumed the Chair.

40. Mr. SHEK (Israel) said that all countries must help to overcome environmental
problems to the best of their ability. An overall willingness to share knowledge,
technical know-how, experience and resources must prevail. Israel supported the
convening of the conference on environment and development to be held in 1992 and
intended to participate actively in the preparatory work.

41. The Mediterrnne::'ln ActiQ~l Plan was an example of what CQuld be achieved through
the concerted efforts of countries to eliminate environmental pollution. Israel
attached paramount inlportance to stUdies attempting to make economic, social and
demographic fQrecasts which helped tQ solve envirQnmental problsms. It was
inexcusable that in 1989, despite the knowledge Qf the earth's fragility, most
development projects were carried out without a proper environmental assessment.

42. Contrary to traditional beliefs, develQpment and environmental issues did not
have to be at variance, but might be complementary. Examples WeI"e the harnessing
of solar and wind energy, the development and construction of solar energy plants
operating in Israel and in other cou~tries and the use that should be made Qf
biological control in agriculture as a more economical and lasting alternative than
chemical pesticides. International cQ-operatiQn and the pQssibility of sharing
knowledge were needed to that end.

43. Reforestation was a means Qf contrQlling desertification and protectinq the
environment. Regrettably, nQt everyone respected the environment. Arab terrorists
had recently set fire to around 2,000 acres of natural forests on Mount Carmel,
which had been devastated, with resulting harm ~Q wildlif~ in danger of extinction
living in the protected habitat of a nature reserve. The perpetrators of such acts
should be duly condemned and reprimanded.

44. Mr. KANDA LONSA (Zaire) said that his country complied fully with the basic
provisions of the Charter of Economic Rights and Duties of States, particularly
article 30 cQncerning the protection, preservation and enhancement Qf the
environment for the present and future generations. Zaire devoted r: per cent of
its national territory to the protection of rare end endangered animal species.

I • •.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC. 2144/SR. 23
English
Page 10

(Mr. Kanda Lonsa, Zaire)

Zaire endorsed the New Zealand proposal on the protection of the ozone layer in
conformity with the Vienna Convention, and joined those States Members which had
declared that fishing with drift nets threatened some rare fish species with
extermination.

45. The industrialized countries systematically violated the World Charter for
Nature and the Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary Movements of
Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal and General Assembly resolution 43/212 on the
responsibility of States for the protection of the environment. The industrialized
countries had transformed Africa into a toxic waste dump. Accordingly, Zaire urged
that strict international regulations should be drafted without delay in that vital
area, and strongly supported the strengthening of the united Nations Environment
Programme and the holding in 1992 of the conference on environment and development.

46. His delegation once again called upon the international community to seek the
means enabling the countries producing and exporting toxic and dangerous wastes to
incinerate or recover those wastes themselves. Moreover, the draft resolution on
the monitoring, assessment and anticipation of environmental threats should be
adopted with a view to consolidating the Earthwatch programme established to that
end in 1972 by the United Nations Conference on the Human Environment. Effective
environmental development should be linked to growth and development with a view to
improving the living conditions of the peoples so that the socio-economic situation
of the South was also of concern to the North in the framework of international
co-operation.

47. Mr. CAHILL (United States of America) said that the world appeared to
recognize the global nature of the threat of environmental deterioration. Air and
water pollution did not respect national boundaries. Global warming and the
depletion of the ozone layer, the strangulation of biological diversity, erosion
and destruction transcended borders and required comprehensive study. The crucial
ecological or environmental problems, desertification or climate changes could only
be addressed if all countries adopted joint measures.

48. The large-scale use of pelagic drift nets endangered virtually all living
marine resources. As those nets were made of a slowly degrading plastic, abandoned
nets continued to ensnare and kill marine wildlife indefinitely. He referred to
some examples of the use of such techniques in the North and South Pacific.
Following several years of negotiations, the United States had concluded bilateral
agreements with Japan and other countries for the monitoring and regulation of the
fleets using those fishing nets in the north Pacific.

49. In the South Pacific, conclusive evidence that the stocks of albacore tuna
would be considerably dep~eted in the near future had led the countries in the
region to call for an end to fishing with those nets. The Republic of Korea should
be congratulated on its decision to cease all its operations in the South Pacific
in which such nets were used, as should Japan for its decision to reduce its
drift-net fleet by two thirds to 1988 levels. The United States intended to
introduce a draft resolution calling for further restraints on the use of those
types of nets on the high seas.

I . •.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C. 2144/SR. 23
English
Page 11

!JO. Mrs •. SC.')'l'l' (.Jamaica) said that her delegation hoped that the verbal
commitments made to finding means of resolving problems that threatened to destroy
~}I" ecological balance and undermine development efforts would be matched with
meAningful action. Her delegation firmly believed that any attempts to consider
environmental issues in isolation would be worthless. Instead of converting the
enviroI~ent into a new form of conditionality in aid and development financing,
whRt was needed was additional capital to assist developing countries with their
environmental projects. The recent Langwaki Declaration by the Commonwealth Heads
o( Government, had reaffirmed the need to adopt a balanced perspective with regard
to protection of the environment and to accord due emphasis to promoting economic
growt.h and sustainable development. Any discussion of the environment at the
inlernational level must recognize the need Lo put an end to economl~ inequities,
~o that the developing countries could begin to pay attention to long-term
environmental issues.

51. Her delegation was conscious of the need to incorporate environmental concerns
in economic planning and policy. The Jamaican Ministry of Development, Planning
c\I1d Production had assumed overall responsibil ity for environmental questions. In
addition, the Conservation and Development Trust was responsible for indigenous
f10rn and fauna and had identifipn poverty as the single most serious threat to
wildlife resources. The Natur~l Resources Conservation Authority dealt with the
proper management of envirorunental matters.

!)~. The Caribbean Community had issup.d the Port of Spain Accord on the management
mId conservation of the Caribbean environment., following the first CARICOM
Ministerial Conference on the Envirorunent. The Community had recognized that the
fundamental element in all activitie~ relating to the envirorunent should be hWTIan
surviVed in a manner t.hat was both in harmony wit.h nature and consistent with hwnan
Wp.}[Hre.

!j~. Her delegation supportGd the need for the adopt.ion of a convention on climate
cllnnge, which should take account of the differences in responsibilities and
e~pRcities of various countries for tackling envirorunental problems. Furthermore,
8deqltAt.e financial provisions should be incorporated in the Montreal Protocol, and
~hc Raspl Convention must also in~lude rules on liability and compensation.

54. The 1992 conference on environment and development should address such
pluiJlems as coastal erosion, land and marine pollution and the preservation of
ypuntic resourcpr. Her delegation hoped that the conference would coincide with
Uw cf!lebration Ul World Environment Dny in 1992. The committee responsible for
tllP prppnretions fOl the conferencp. should ensure universal participation at a high
level. He delegation believed that a voluntary fund should be established to
UHsist developing countlies to participate in the conference, in accordance with
the Governing Counci 1 of UNEP.

55. Mr •...J!UP..D...RUP..I~ (Pakistan) said that in order to solve current environmental
problems it was necessary to have a clear agreement on the causes of envirorunental
degradation and reach agreement on the matter. It had to be recognized also that
the developing countries had contributed only insignificantly to the current state

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2144/SR.23
English
Page 12

(Mx. Buddrudin, Pakistan)

of the environment and that in those countries environmental deterioration was
linked intrinsically to economic development. Poverty was the main cause of
deforestation and desertification, two environmental problems that were very common
in those countries. As long as poverty left the population no other alternative to
the exploitation of the environment, degradation would continue.

56. Undoubtedly, the industries of the developing countries did not function
adequately from the environmental point of view. In order to change that
situation, a mass transfer of technology was needed, and the capacity of each
country should be developed. The refusal of the developed countries to share and
transfer environmentally appropriate technologies might constitute a grave obstacle
to the formulation of a world strategy to prevent the continuing deterioration of
the environment.

57. In Pakistan, the prime environmental problems were d~sertification,

water-logging· and salinity, soil degradation and water-borne diseases. The
Government of Pakistan recognized the need to adopt a strategy for environmentally
sound and sustainable development that would also deal with research, legislation
and co-ordination among the parties involved in environmental management. The
co-ordination of the activities undertaken at any leve~ was considered to be of
fundamental importance. Such co-operation was concentrated at the federal and the
provincial levels and was reflected in the establishment of environmental
protection bodies, the adoption of laws relating to the environment, development
planning, the adoption of environmental control rules, evaluation, training, the
formulation of a national conservation strategy and education on the environment.

58. Mr. GALGAU (Romania) said that, since the adoption of the Environmental
Perspective to the Year 2000 and Beyond, the international community recognized
that ecological problems constituted a global threat requiring global
co-operation. During the past two years, a new awareness of the interrelation
between the environment and development had been acquired. It had been recognized
that man lived in a world with limited and finite resources and that his capacity
for survival would depend increasingly on maintaining the delicate balance between
human activities and life support systems. There was a growing trend towards
support for environmental protection programmes, even at the expense of another
area of economic growth.

59. In international co-operation, account should be taken of the fact that the
bulk of pollution so far had stemmed from the industrialized countries, causing
great damage to the natural resources not only in those countries but also in the
rest of the world. In the developing countries, the elimination of
underdevelopment and extreme poverty was a necessary condition for preventing the
continuation of the deterioration of the environment. Desertification,
deforestation, soil erosion and salinization were to a large extent the result of
desperate attempts on the part of the poor population to obtain food and fuel. The
policy of many multinational companies to relocate heavily polluting industries in
developing countries, thereby side-stepping pollution abatement standards and
paying little attention to health and safety hazards, had aggravated the problems
in those countries.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



AlC.2144/SR.23
English
Page 13

(Mr. Galgau, Romania)

60. Nomania supported the proposal to establish a preparatory committee for the
conCerence on environment and development, that would meet either in New 'loI"k or i.n
Geneva, as well as the idea of establishing a secretariat for the conference.
Romania whole-heartedly supported the offer of the Government of Brazil to host the
Cuture conference.

61. Interna:0,: ~rCorts in the aroa of transboundary movements and the disposal
of hazardous wa~t.~~ had culminated in the adoption of the Basel Convention. Hy
stating the soverJign right of every State to ban the entry into or disposal in its
territory of foreign hazardous wastes, as well as the principle of prior informed
consent of importing and transit countries [or any transboundary movement invo1villg
hazardous wastes, the Convention could have a decisive impact on efforts to combat
the illegal traffic in toxic wastes. However, notwithstanding the provisions of
resolution 43/212 of the General A3sembly and those of the Basel Convention, ~he

report of the Secretary-General, contained in document A/44/362, clearly indicated
that cases of i llegal international traf Cic in hazardous wastes continued to
occ:ur. The growing number of proposals Crom the industrial world to build
so-called waste-to-energy plants in d~veloping countries or to provide supposedly
non-hazardous waste landfill or incineration facilities therefore constituted a
disturbing trend.

62. Romania was convinced oC the need to take immediate practical measures pending
the entry into force of the Convention, and it urged all Member States to refrain
from the aforementioned practices and from any activities that were contrary to the
provisions of the Convention. It also believed that the establishment of rules on
liability and compensation for d~nages as soon as practicable would contribute
significantly to the elimination of such harmful practices by defining in more
precise terms the responsibility oC those who engaged in such illegal traffic. The
development of low and non-waste technologies and their unobstructed trans[er to
developing countries, together with the provision of appropriate assistance to
those countries to enable them effectively to combat illegal traffic, were
imperative for progress in that specific area and in global co-operation as well.

64. Mr,A.L~MU (Ethiopia) welcomed t.he increasing attention accorded to
env; ronmentally sound i.'\ncl susta.i.nab1e clevelopment. However, the internationi.'\l
commllnity was still far from agreeing on i.'\ common intarpretation of that concppt.
Ethiopia believed that the defining elements of sustainable development agreed upon
by the Governing Council of the United Ni.'\t.ions Environment Programme at it.s
fifleenth session, contained in annex 11 of its decision 15/2, could provide the
basis for a universally acceptable interpretation.

65. The current world environmental crisis was rooted in the abuse of nature by
both developed ~nd developing countries. In the developed world, the abuse
resulted from the pursuit of growth which had been thought to be limitlesR, while
in the developing world, it was inextricably bound up with the needs created by
poverty.

/ ...
Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library



A/C.2/44/SR.23
English
Page 14

(Mr. Alemu, Ethiopia)

66. Ethiopia agreed with what the representative of FAO had said in his address to
the Second Committee. In many developing countries, the combination of demographic
pressure and poverty left no other alternative than to fell the forests and to
over-exploit soil and grazing lands.

67. The only way to break the vicious cycle set off by poverty and ecological
degradation was through international co-operation. Ethiopia hoped that the United
Nations conference on environment and development would lay the basis for effective
international assistance to developing countries with a view to helping them to
overcome the specific and long-standing ecological difficulties in which they were
mired. It fully supported Brazil's offer to host the conference.

68. Ethiopia believed that the major obstacle to the Plan of Action to Combat
Dese r .~ation was the lack of financial resources. The affected countries should
acco. priority to programmes to combat desertification within the context of
national plans for the development of natural resources and the rehabilitation of
the adversely affected ecosystem. In that context, the Intergovernmental Authority
for Drought and Development (IGADD) was of the highest importance. Ethiopia wished
to commend the valuable work of the United Nations Sudano-Sahelian Office (UNSO) in
facilitating the work of IGADD and it welcomed the establishment of the regional
office at Nairobi. UNSO was also doing valuable work in reforestation and in
fuel-wood plantation, with funds from the Danish International Development Agency
and the Finnish International Development Agency. Those agencies were taking on
one of the major environmental problems facing Ethiopia - the loss of a tremendous
amount of forest cover, which had reached dangerous proportions.

69. Mr. CHUNG (Observer, Republic of Korea) commended the decisions and
recommendations concerning depletion of the ozone layer, global warming,
transboundary air and water pollution, deforestation and desertification, contained
in the report of the Governing Council of the United Nations Environment Programme
on its fifteenth session. It was gratifying to note that there seemed to be broad
agreement on the responsibility for environmental tasks.

70. His delegation attached great importance to the United Nations conference on
environment and development which was scheduled for 1992. The success of the
Conference depended more on political will than on technological means. It was
necessary to hold a sufficient number of preparatory meetings, and to ensure that
the secretariat was large enough to deal with the task athan~. In addition, the
United Nations Environment Programme should be strengthened in view of its role as
co-ordinator of wide-ranging environmental programmes.

The meeting rose at 6 p.m.

Digitized by Dag Hammarskjöld Library




